Many Changes in College Staff.

Biggest Football Year Ever, in Sight.


Union Memorial Building Campaign Organizing.

"M.A.C. cannot live on Her past — What will you do for Her future?"

The MICHIGAN AGRICULTURAL COLLEGE ASSOCIATION - East Lansing, Michigan Publishers
THE M. A. C. RECORD.

SMITH POULTRY & EGG CO.
Commission Merchants.
Solicit consignments in Poultry and Eggs.
Guy H. Smith, 11
Western Market, Detroit.

CORYELL NURSERY
Birmingham, Mich.
Growers of High Grade Ornamentals.
We raise a large variety of vigorous stock for home grounds and public parks.

R. J. Coryell, '94, President; Ralph J.
Coryell, '14, Secretary and Treasurer.

EDWARD N. PAGELSEN '89
Patents, Patent Law, Trademarks
Formerly an Examiner in the U. S. Patent Office.

ALUMNI BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL DIRECTORY

A. M. EMMERY '83.
220 W. Lapeer Ave., N.
H. C. Fratt, '03, in charge of Office
Supply Department.
Books, Stationery, Engraved Call-
ing cards, Fountain Pens, Pictures.
Frames, Filing Cabinets and General Office Supplies.

M. A. C. ASSOCIATIONS.

Central Michigan.
President—Mrs. Thos. Gunson, '14, 12, East Lansing.

Detroit Club.
President—H. B. Gunnison, '60, Detroit Edison Co.
Vice-President—Edward C. Krehl, '95, 108 Seebault Ave.
Secretary and Treasurer—John H. Kenyon, W. Mutual Benefit Ins. Co.

New York City.
President—H. W. Collingwood, '83, 333 W. 33rd St.

St. Joseph County.
President—W. T. Langley, '84, Constantine, R. F. D.
Vice-President—Sam Hagenbuck, '10, Three Rivers.

Pennsylvania Club.
President—Charles Richards, Benton Harbor, R. R. Fair Plains.

Philadelphia Club.
President—A. J. Anderson, "05, By-
wood, Upton-Darby, D. C.

Minneapolis Club.
President—J. Allen Miller, '12, 22 29
Taylor St. N. E.
Vice-President—J. W. Westerveld, '12, care Universal Portland Cement Co.
Secretary—C. C. Cavanagh, '09, 836
Security Bldg.

Jackson County.
President—L. Whitney Watkins, '85, Man-
chester, Mich.
Vice-President—W. K. Sagendorph, '04, 416 W. Frank St., Jackson.
Secretary—W. B. Allen, '07, 129 S.
Hill St., Jackson.

Kalamazoo Club.
President—J. Woodin, '12, 13,
Whole-
sale Terminal Bldg., Los Angeles.
Secretary—W. T. Langley, '82, 333 W. 30th St.

Lenawee County.
President—C. L. Coffeen, '12, Adrian.
Secretary—Jessie Illenden, '12, Adrian.

Upper Peninsula.
President—Neil Van Horn, '11, 225
Arch St., Marquette.

Northern California.
President—E. C. Bank, '84, Je-
ffrey Hotel, Salinas, Calif.
Secretary—G. H. Freear, 120 Jessie St., San Francisco.

New England.
Secretary—Glenn C. SeVey, '03, Russell.

Northeastern Michigan.
President—A. MacVittie, '11, Caro.
Vice-President—Morrice Courtwright, w13, 1326 Centre Ave., Bay City.

Northwest Michigan.
President—H. A. Danville, '83, Ar-
ccadian.
Vice-President—L. Whitney Watkins, '85, By-
wood, Upton-Darby, D. C.
Secretary—Alice Kuenzli, '16, Mani-
tese.

PULTRY & EGG CO.
Commission Merchants.
Solicit consignments in Poultry and Eggs.
Guy H. Smith, 11
Western Market, Detroit.

H. KOSITCHEK & BROS.
115 N. Wash. Ave.
The Home of Those Celebrated Ed. Y.
Price Tailor-Made Suits and Over-
coats (Fashion Park Clothes)
(Style Plus Suits and
Overcoats)

"HANK AND FRANK"
Your barbers for the last five years.
Pool, Billiards, Cigars.
In the new Dickson Building.

J. H. LARRABEE
325 S. Washington Ave.
Sport Shop—Athletic Goods of All Kinds.

A. R. HARFORD
College Watch Maker.
Variety and Gift Shop.

ALLEN & DE KLEINE CO.
124-130 West Ionia.
Printers—Office Outfitters.
The finest equipped plant in Central Michigan.

Bell 1094

CITY OF EAST LANSING.
N. W. L. LEWIS, Mayor.

COLE CAFE AND TEA ROOM
Grand River Ave., East Lansing.

Philadelphia Club.
President—A. J. Anderson, '05, By-
wood, Upton-Darby, D. C.

GOODELL, ZELIN C.
(Forestry, M. A. C. '11)
Insurance and Bonds of Every Kind.
Better security or write Goodell about
a good proposition.

LANSING INSURANCE AGENCY, Inc.
208-212 Capital National Bank Bldg.

Coryell, '94, President; Ralph J.
Coryell, '14, Secretary and Treasurer.

Dr. Oscar H. Bruegel
Hours: 11 to 12 a.m., 2 to 4 and 7 to 8 p. m.; Sundays 12 to 1 p.m. Evening hours: Mon., Wed. and Sat.

Office in East Lansing State Bank Bldg.

In East Lansing State Bank Bldg.

E. M. Harvey 1915.
J. P. Pratt, Mgr. ABBOT AVE.

M. A. C. RECORD.

M. A. C. RECORD.

M. A. C. RECORD.
THE M. A. C. RECORD

VOl. XXV. EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN, SEPTEMBER 19, 1919.

The Campus has been very much alive during the summer, in fact the activity in July was not unlike that during the usual college year. The immediate causes offered for returned soldiers and sailors who wished to catch up with their classes were the largest summer sessions the college has known. The usual short courses for teachers and the conferences for rural ministers were unusually well attended and brought a good many new faces to the campus. Dr. Liberty Hyde Bailey '82 was the principal speaker at the summer conference session in July. Following his lectures at M. A. C., Dr. Bailey left for England where he expected to study in the Kew Gardens near Kensington. Many special meetings and picnics were held on the Campus in the latter part of the summer, among the most notable being the picnic of the Lansing Masonic Lodge who were the college guests of Director Brewer and Prof. Gunson on August 1. The first annual meeting of the Michigan Soil Improvement Association brought many leading farmers to the state and noted specialists from other states. W. D. Hurd '99 of the National Soil Improvement Committee addressed the meeting. The Holstein-Friesian cattle breeders held a picnic and meeting later in August which was very largely attended by dairymen of Michigan.

Housing facilities for students is a problem that the college is facing at the beginning of this year. With an expected attendance larger than M. A. C. has had in several years and with much less dormitory space available the situation may be termed acute. The proper housing of the girls is receiving special attention. The two men's society houses which were leased for last year by the college and used as girl's dormitories have reverted to their owners the Hesperian and Eunomian Literary Societies so that the facilities that they offered will have to be secured elsewhere. With all of the dormitory rooms on the campus taken many students are returning early to secure rooming accommodations in East Lansing. From present appearances it would seem that these will soon be exhausted. Whether an attempt will be made to place the young women students in houses by themselves or whether they will be permitted to rent homes elsewhere is being determined. It is feared that a case will be at a minimum until dormitory space becomes available. The college community is filled and apartments waiting lists are very long.

The largest entrance class in the history of the College is expected to enroll when the college opens its sixty-second year on September 30. Interest in agriculture has been greatly increased by the war, and indications are that many more young men than usual will prepare themselves for scientific farming. More young women have already made application for entrance to the home economics course than ever before, and the college is adding to its equipment and strengthening its teaching force in order to take care of the demands upon it. The demand for teachers of domestic science and dietitians in hospitals is partly responsible for the increased enrollment of girls.

The 'CO-OP' Book Store, which for 19 years has operated adjacent to the alumni office in the car station building on the campus has moved to the Bank Block on Grand River Avenue. Enlarged and more advantageous business quarters are gained in the move, and the store facilities are made more convenient to East Lansing school children. The Book Buying Association has had a very steady and solid growth for the time of its founding in 1896 and the present move to a better business location with the possibilities of branching out and broadening its lines of trade is a further mark of progress.

C. D. Betts, former purchasing agent for the college was appointed State purchasing Agent by Governor Sleeper during the summer and has left the college to take up his state duties. For eight years Mr. Betts has been purchasing agent for M. A. C. coming to the college from the purchasing department of the Pere Marquette Railway. His new position was created by the last legislature and the present move to a better business location with the possibilities of branching out and broadening its lines of trade is a further mark of progress.

The Standard Real Estate Co. of Lansing. The Oak Ridge Land Company was recently organized to develop the Cowley property just west of the college and has as its officers: Joseph Shew, Secretary; Prof. A. C. Conner, Vice President; and A. J. Nash, Secretary and Treasurer. During the summer demands for a local building loan association were met by the organization of the East Lansing Building and Loan Association. The new company is organized under the state laws for such associations. The officers are D. A. Seeley '98, President; Mark Smith with '98, Secretary and Treasurer. The Board of Directors consists of Prof. Ryder, Director Brewer, Prof. Plant, Luther H. Baker '93, Prof. Chapman, Dr. Gitnner, Prof. Emmons, Prof. Sawyer, Chase Newman with '98 and J. A. Nash. The new association has had one hundred applications for loans and is just arranging to begin an active business. It will be a great aid to the city in developing East Lansing as a home owner's town. Approximately forty new houses are in the course of construction and should relieve the situation somewhat before winter.

A recent order of the War Department placed Major P. G. Wrightson upon the retired list and Major C. A. Ross with '11 was sent to the college to succeed Major Wrightson as commandant. Major Ross was here but two days, however, when orders were received assigning him to a post at the Academy at West Point and whether Major Wrightson will leave M. A. C. is still indefinite. There is now before Congress a bill providing that retired officers now successfully serving as commandants at schools and colleges may be retained. It is entirely possible that if this bill is passed by both houses Major Wrightson will continue at the college. The order which retires Major Wrightson places upon the retired list every army officer in the country who was on the inactive list prior to the war and went into active service during the war. It was the idea that these men were to be replaced by officers who were on the active list. Upon first receiving the order retiring him Major Wrightson made plans to move to Los Angeles. As he has not proceeded with the plan, however, awaiting the decision of Congress and the War Department. The fact that at the annual government inspection, the college regiment went into the distinguished class of first ten regiments, should prove a strong argument for the retaining of his services at M. A. C.
THE M. A. C. RECORD

Entered as second-class matter October 30, 1915, at the post office at East Lansing, Mich., under the Act of March 3, 1879.

Published every Friday during the College Year by the Michigan Agricultural College Association.

W. K. Prudden, '86, Lansing - President
E. W. Ranney, '00, Greenville, Vice President
C. W. McKibbin, '71, East Lansing, Secretary and Editor
May E. Foley, '18, Assistant Secretary
A. C. McKinnon, '76, Bay City
Anna Cowles, '15, East Lansing
George E. Voggel, '11, East Lansing
May E. Foley, '18, Assistant Secretary
W. K. Prudden, '78, Lansing
E. W. Ranney, '00, Greenville
H. H. Musselman, '88, East Lansing
C. W. McKibbin, '71, East Lansing
May E. Foley, '18, Assistant Secretary
A. C. McKinnon, '76

MEMBERSHIP IN THE M. A. C. ASSOCIATION includes subscription to the Record, $2.00 PER YEAR.

Make Remittances payable to the M. A. C. Association.

FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 1919.

THE ALUMNI PROJECT.

At commencement time the Association pledged itself to the raising of $150,000 to erect a Union Memorial Building and then and there substantiated its pledge with the subscription of $25,000. During the summer an untold amount of preliminary work has been accomplished which does not show in immediate results but which is necessary, nevertheless—and the campaign organization gotten under way. Probably the next issue of the Record will announce the regional directors and the local association committees. Then the drive will be put on in earnest with the goal to be reached by December.

It is intended that the campaign by mail shall be supplemented and followed up by personal contact solicitation by committees among the local associations. Certainly no one shall be missed in the extending of the opportunity to give. This is the first big project ever undertaken by M. A. C. alumni. M. A. C. Spirit won't permit of any result but an early "over the top."

* * *

The last issue of last year was the commencement number. It was necessary to omit the usual summer number of the Record and this issue begins the new year. The next number will issue October 3 and weekly thereafter.

GEORGE T. HAYES '15.

News has recently been received of the death of George T. Hayes, '15 on July 26 at Whittier, Calif., after a long illness. He had a severe attack of influenza in February, 1919, which was followed by pneumonia. Since May he had failed gradually in consequence of an operation performed upon his lungs.

Hayes, at the time of his death, was superintendent of field work for the Leffingwell Orange and Lemon Ranch, at Whittier. Immediately after his graduation he was an instructor in the department of horticulture, at M. A. C. While in college he was a member of the Electric Society, the Sem. Bot. fraternity, the Hort Club, and the New York Club of LeMans.

Mrs. Hayes will be remembered as Frances Mary Madison, assistant to Miss Hollister, Seed Analyst at the college in 1914-16.

HARRY A. MYERS '18.

Harry A. Myers, with '19 of Leipsic, Ohio, was accidentally drowned June 6, in the Sarthe River at LeMans, France. He was a Sargeant of the Headquarters Detachment, 546, Engineers, A. E. F. He was buried with military honors at LeMans.

Myers entered M. A. C. in the fall of 1914 as a student in the Agricultural course, and left at the beginning of the spring term in his junior year.

immediately after the breaking out of the war. He was a member of the Herman Society, and the Farmers' and Buckeye Clubs, and of the S. C. L of the Peoples Church.

Myers left New York with his regiment Sept. 14, 1918, and arrived in France Oct. 7. He was in the Argonne drive which began November 1, at which time the Germans were driven back for the last time. In a letter written last winter, he mentioned planning to get back in time to attend college this fall.

FLOYD C. TAYLOR '09.

Floyd Clyde Taylor '09 died very suddenly at the home of his parents in Charlotte July 20th. He had undergone an operation a month or so previously and it is thought that death was due to a blood clot in the brain.

Mr. Taylor was consulting engineer at the Novo Engine Co. in Lansing and has been living in Lansing since graduation. He has been employed in the Novo Company since 1916. Previous to that time he was engaged with the Central Welding Co. of Lansing.

THE WAR RECORD.

Many inquiries have come concerning the War Record, which the College is contemplating publishing. We hope now to have this completed before winter. Information has been gathered in some of the boys who have not yet returned, and matters at the college have somewhat delayed the publication of this book. As soon as it is completed, all men who were in the service will be notified and photographs will be returned.

FROM DR. BEAL.

Amherst, Mass. August 1, 1919.

Dear President Kedzie:

Last evening a flying machine with three men arrived from Washington, sailing over Amherst lighted in a field of the Agricultural College. One of the men lectured to the crowd of the summer course, saying they are to rise, performing some fancy stunts and return. On the trip they went around a thunder storm. Ray (Ray Standard Baker '89) rode in a machine from Paris to Belgium and got terribly scared. He now believes the young driver purposely tried to scare him. No doubt M. A. C. will add this sort of thing to help entertain the crowd of up-to-date farmers.

These are great times.

W. J. Beal.

WINNER OF LAWSON PRIZE ANNOUNCED.

A tabulation of the grades in the Lawson Prize Essay Contest gives first place, with a prize of $25.00 to Stanley M. Powell, of Ionia, a junior in the agricultural division. The winning essay is entitled "Living the Full Life on the Farm." The second prize of $15.00, goes to Walter Hockstad, '22, agricultural student of Traverse City. This is the first time a freshman has won a prize in the Lawson Contest.

Mr. Powell, who wins first place, has made an exceptional record in his academic work and in his outside activities during his three years in M. A. C. He has the too rare distinction of making an A in each term of English during his freshman year. In the spring term of the same year he represented M. A. C. in its freshman debate with Hillsdale College. In 1918 he was a member of the debating team that defeated Iowa State College. This is the second time he has contested
for the Lawson Prize. Last year he wrote on "The Bright Side of the War," but was defeated by H. C. Diehl, senior forestry student, whose essay on "Strindberg" won first place, and by Paul C. Jamieson, now county agent of Calhoun county, whose "Patriotism and Production" took second.

The judges this year were A. M. Drummond, director of the Cascadilla School, Ithaca, N. Y.; Richard T. F. Harding, manager of the Youngstown Telegram, Youngstown, Ohio; and Professor J. E. Rogers, of Carroll College.

The grades sent in by the judges are kept on file in the English office, where they may be seen by anyone who is interested in the contest.

MISS MAY FOLEY '18 ASSISTANT ALUMNI SECRETARY.

The alumni office announces with much pleasure the addition to its staff of Miss May E. Foley '18 of St. Johns as an assistant to the secretary and editor.

Since graduation Miss Foley has been home demonstration agent in Menominee County, leaving that work July first to enter the alumni office. Miss Foley is especially well fitted for her new work. She was associated with E. R. Trangmar, '17 in the college publicity office during its organization and while she was still in college. During the past year she organized the home demonstration work in Menominee county.

The Union Memorial Building campaign and the gathering of the material for the college war history, besides the regular alumni work which is by no means diminishing—have so increased the tasks of the alumni office that the appointment of Miss Foley as an assistant is most pleasurably greeted. We know that along the us, members of the Association and readers of the Record, will appreciate her services in a facilitated handling of Association matters and a larger and a more newsy M. A. C. Record.

BIG FOOTBALL YEAR EXPECTED.

Coaches Call Out Greatest Squad in History.

With the opening of the Aggie early season football training at M. A. C. this week work will be started in developing a gridiron aggregation, which should be the very best ever turned out at M. A. C. Coaches, fans and followers all agree that never have the prospects been as bright as at the present time. This year because of the abnormal conditions resulting from the war no less than 18 winners of football monograms in former years will be back at their alma mater to have a try at making the team. And besides these men there are a host of candidates who have been members of all-fresh teams in years past, and who have developed enough to make the others hussle this year.

Great teams in the past which have mostly been built around some three or four particularly brilliant performers, but this year it would appear from a careful view of the situation that every single position can be filled by a man who is a real star. At least 35 are expected to come out to the early season training and there will be more to make teams after classes start.

The forming captains who are expected to back are Del Vandervoort, captain-elect for 1917; Sherman Coryell, captain in 1917; "Irish" Ramsey, captain-elect in 1918; and Larry Archer, captain in 1918. In addition there will be Swash Franson, the appointed leader for this fall, who is expected to have his hands full handling a flock of old-timers, many of whom were regulars when he was serving his apprenticeship.

Other varus are expected to be in the fold when the coaches take charge. They are Hannes Snyder, Simmons, Oas, and Springer, all back field men, and Schwie, Basset, Bos, VanOrden and several other linemen. Followers of the team are already predicting a repetition of Aggie successes of '14 and '15.

Their predictions are not based alone upon the wonderful lineup of material at hand, but take into account the unparalleled coaching staff. The coaching crew will be on the job himself this fall and alumni know the Directors "falling" for football and that it is his favorite sport. Assisting is G. E. Gauthier '14 who directed the Aggies destiny last year and who is "at his old job nothing."

As second assistant, Lyman Frimodig '17 will take his part in bringing out another winning aggregation. It will be Frim's first year at college coaching, but those who remember his record as an athlete at M. A. C. have no doubts as to the big boy's ability to fit into the machine. Frimodig holds the M. A. C. record for all time in monograms won, having corralled no less than ten varsity letters during his stay at college.

During the summer, the baseball diamond on College field has been dug out and a solid turf is now in its place. The first practice will commence on the regular schedule. Conditioning for wind and legs will be the object of the first exercises. Until college opens the men are to be housed in Wells Hall. No training table will be established.

FACULTY CHANGES.

New Dean of Women.

Miss Eudora Savage, until recently dean of women at the Kirkville Normal College, Kirkville, Mo., will be the new dean of women. She succeeds Miss Anna Howard, who resigned before the close of the college year, and begins her new duties this week.

Miss Savage was director of teacher training at the Kirkville Normal and was connected with that institution for 12 years. Prior to that she taught at the Stevens Point, Wis., Normal. She is a graduate of Michigan State Normal and Chicago University and has taken work at the University of Wisconsin and Columbia.

Bibbins '15 Made Assistant Prof.

Baseball fans among the alumni and many others will be glad to learn of the return to the college staff of A. Leal Bibbins '15. "Bib," who was discharged from the Motor Transportation Service August 2, Bibbins comes to the college as an assistant professor in the farm crops department. He was an instructor in this department for two years after graduation. He enlisted as a private in the 310th Engineers in September, 1917, and trained at the Motor Transport Corps. While across, he studied crop rotation at the Rothamstead Experiment Station, at Aberdeen College, Scotland. Bibbins' company had a famous baseball team, which beat up all Brigade and Regimental teams, winning 22 games out of 22 played. Three other famous M. A. C. baseball stars were on the team, Morris Knapp, '13, "Hockey" Ralph Dodge '14, and "Chi" Pick, '17.

Alumni Goes to U. of M.

Prof. M. F. Johnson, '07, on the staff in the mathematics department for ten years, has accepted a position with University of Michigan. He was an instructor at M. A. C. from 1909 to 1912, acting head of the department in 1912 and 1913, and was made assistant professor in 1913, which position he held until the time of his resignation. Last fall he did graduate work at the University, and received his master's degree.
Prof. Hailigan Heads Horticultural Department.

Professor Charles P. Hailigan who has been connected with the department of horticulture since 1907, was made head of the department at the August meeting of the State Board of Agriculture, to take the place of Prof. H. J. Eustace, resigned.

Because of his broad experience and knowledge of the department, Mr. Hailigan was considered better qualified that any other man to fill this position.

He graduated from the Massachusetts Agricultural College in 1883, and taught two years in the National Farm School of Pennsylvania, and previous to coming here was an instructor in the Massachusetts Agricultural College.

Prof. Hailigan was made Assistant Professor in 1910, and Associate Professor in 1913. He was acting head during the year that Prof. Eustace was making a tour of inspection of the United States. He is particularly interested in landscape gardening, and has featured this work.

Popular Club Leader goes to New York.

Anna B. Cowles, '15, who since her graduation has been connected with the extension department of the college has resigned to accept a position with the National Community Council of New York City. Miss Cowles has been State Club Leader for Girls during the past three years, and previous to that was an extension specialist in dairy manufacturing.

Miss Cowles will organize community centers in Manhattan. Her address in New York will be 609 W. 114th St.

Miss Barbara Van Heulen, '10, who has been Assistant Club Leader for the past two years, will probably be appointed as State Leader.

M. A. C. Man Becomes Associate in Dairy Department.

O. T. Goodwin, '13, who has been connected with the college for a year as an extension specialist in dairy manufacturing, was appointed Associate Professor of Dairy Husbandry beginning Sept. 1. Previous to this and since his graduation from M. A. C., he was with the University of Georgia, first as instructor and later as assistant professor of animal husbandry. He takes the place of Prof. H. W. F. Newhall, resigned, who is leaving for New York University to do graduate work. Mr. Newhall was with the department for three years.

“Fat” Taylor Joins Faculty.

Dr. O. A. Taylor, '15, “Fat” popular yellmaster, while at M. A. C. has been appointed assistant professor in the Veterinary Department. Dr. Taylor was discharged from the service where he was a Lieutenant in the Veterinary Division, on April 22. Prior to this and immediately after his graduation from college, he was in practice in Detroit with Dr. R. Armstrong. He succeeds Dr. J. W. Benner, who has resigned.

Prof. Melick Leaves.

Engineers and other alumni will regret to learn of the resignation of G. A. Melick, associate professor of civil engineering, who has been connected with the college for eight years, first as assistant and latter as associate professor. He is now with the State Highway Department at Lansing. Mr. Melick is succeeded by Chester Allen of Washington, D. C.

Popular Home Economics professor Leaves.

Miss Edna Garvin, Associate Professor of Domestic Science, resigned her position on September 1. Miss Garvin came here from Columbia University three years ago as an instructor in the department, and last year was made associate professor. She was well known and liked among the home economics students, and did splendid work in the diet kitchen at the time of the influenza epidemic in the S. A. T. C. last fall and winter.

Drawing Instructor Returns.

Myron Chapin, for three years instructor in the Drawing Department, previous to entering the service, returns this year. Mr. Chapin went to Camp Custer in the fall of 1917, and has just recently been discharged.

THE M. A. C. RECORD.

Horticulturist Takes New Position.

John H. Carmody, '12, Extension Specialist in Horticulture for two years, left August 1 to take a position at the Field Station of the Louis Sugar Co., Decatur, Ind. Carmody was discharged in May from the Ambulance Corp. 340, after serving for nearly two years with the 56th Division. Prior to his appointment as Extension Specialist for the college he held a similar position with the Kentucky University. Carmody did excellent work with the college and is well known among horticulturists.

CAMPUS LANDSCAPERS REPORT ON CHURCH AND BUILDING SITES.

At the June meeting of the State Board of Agriculture, Oimstead Brothers of Boston, into whose charge the future arrangement and development of the college campus has been placed following guidance to the advisability of permitting a church site on the campus and the location of the new library-administration building and the auditorium.

“You have referred two questions to us for an opinion. The first relates to the expediency of transferring land now owned in the Campus to the People's Church as a site for a church building, and to the question of whether such a site is expedient. Bearing in mind the history of other educational institutions in regard to extension and contraction of the lands held by them for educational purposes, and bearing in mind the present logical and satisfactory boundary of the Campus along Grand River and Michigan Avenues, we would advise in the strongest terms against alienating any of the College land south of those Avenues. If it is the policy of the Board to enter into co-operation with any religious denominations which may maintain the People's Church, or with any or all of the religious congregations which may hereafter be established in East Lansing, for the purpose of providing a common place of worship for joint use by students and citizens, it would seem that this can be accomplished in either of two ways, without the very serious risk of future complications involved in alienating any part of the Campus. One way would be the erection on the Campus of a non-sectarian collegiate chapel or church open to the citizens of the town and partly supported by them but owned by the College and providing for worship from time to time according to the number of any and every faith and creed by a considerable number of students. The other would be to aid by money grants and services in the support of any church or churches in the town to which the students resign their church within the Campus but not to it, and wholly beyond the control of your board as to the future development of it. The question of a suitable site for a church within the Campus must be important, even if the opinion of the Board concurs with ours in regard to the sites elsewhere proposed. It is a part of the Campus, in case there is any probability of co-operation with any denominations in the erection and use of a structure on the Campus without a title from the College. But the selection of a good site is not easy, and in view...
The other matter relates to the location of the Auditorium. In our report of May 10th, 1915, in outlining a scheme of future quadrangle development, we recommended the north end of Quadrangle 11, including a certain degree in a department of the subject, as possibly desirable for the future library, and recommended the west end of Quadrangle 10 for the present greenhouse for an Auditorium. The destruction of Williams Hall and the economic desire to open the present library building to other uses and relieve it of some extension, point clearly toward the erection of the new library on the site of Williams Hall, although that site was not recommended in 1915 and has some drawbacks. Its main advantage is that it is more central to the working buildings of the College, and it is weakened only advantage of the site recommended previously is that in the distant future, with the completion of the quadrangle system which we outlined, it would be dissected by the extensive research work in special fields may be undertaken, and should the library be situated in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.

In our report of 1915 we urged that the site of College Hall should not be used for a large modern building, but for a small, single-story building on the scale of the old Campus to the north. In saying this we had in mind the character of space needed for seminars and class rooms and special study rooms and for special laboratories: the possible desirability of having some arrangement of reference material, such as herbaria, and the means of consulting and working with the literature of the subject. All of these factors would make it extremely desirable to have a college library, especially the library of the subject. The situation of the library is important in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.

In our report of 1915 we urged that the site of College Hall should not be used for a large modern building, but for a small, single-story building on the scale of the old Campus to the north. In saying this we had in mind the character of space needed for seminars and class rooms and special study rooms and for special laboratories: the possible desirability of having some arrangement of reference material, such as herbaria, and the means of consulting and working with the literature of the subject. All of these factors would make it extremely desirable to have a college library, especially the library of the subject. The situation of the library is important in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.

In our report of 1915 we urged that the site of College Hall should not be used for a large modern building, but for a small, single-story building on the scale of the old Campus to the north. In saying this we had in mind the character of space needed for seminars and class rooms and special study rooms and for special laboratories: the possible desirability of having some arrangement of reference material, such as herbaria, and the means of consulting and working with the literature of the subject. All of these factors would make it extremely desirable to have a college library, especially the library of the subject. The situation of the library is important in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.

In our report of 1915 we urged that the site of College Hall should not be used for a large modern building, but for a small, single-story building on the scale of the old Campus to the north. In saying this we had in mind the character of space needed for seminars and class rooms and special study rooms and for special laboratories: the possible desirability of having some arrangement of reference material, such as herbaria, and the means of consulting and working with the literature of the subject. All of these factors would make it extremely desirable to have a college library, especially the library of the subject. The situation of the library is important in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.

In our report of 1915 we urged that the site of College Hall should not be used for a large modern building, but for a small, single-story building on the scale of the old Campus to the north. In saying this we had in mind the character of space needed for seminars and class rooms and special study rooms and for special laboratories: the possible desirability of having some arrangement of reference material, such as herbaria, and the means of consulting and working with the literature of the subject. All of these factors would make it extremely desirable to have a college library, especially the library of the subject. The situation of the library is important in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.

In our report of 1915 we urged that the site of College Hall should not be used for a large modern building, but for a small, single-story building on the scale of the old Campus to the north. In saying this we had in mind the character of space needed for seminars and class rooms and special study rooms and for special laboratories: the possible desirability of having some arrangement of reference material, such as herbaria, and the means of consulting and working with the literature of the subject. All of these factors would make it extremely desirable to have a college library, especially the library of the subject. The situation of the library is important in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.

In our report of 1915 we urged that the site of College Hall should not be used for a large modern building, but for a small, single-story building on the scale of the old Campus to the north. In saying this we had in mind the character of space needed for seminars and class rooms and special study rooms and for special laboratories: the possible desirability of having some arrangement of reference material, such as herbaria, and the means of consulting and working with the literature of the subject. All of these factors would make it extremely desirable to have a college library, especially the library of the subject. The situation of the library is important in relation to other buildings that future generations may have the opportunity of extending the building in several directions as their needs may dictate, and not sentiment about its old stock. Therefore, to block the possibility of extension in one or more directions by attaching to the library an auditorium, which is by its nature not very suitable to add to the campus of Quadrangle 11, we suggested but not as to block its free expansion.
date for an advanced degree within two years after application for enrollment, his name shall be dropped and re-enrollment shall be necessary before he may again take up work for the degree.

The professional degrees which are granted under this arrangement are:

C. E., Civil Engineer; M. E., Mechanical Engineer; E. E., Electrical Engineer; Chem. E., Chemical Engineer; M. Agr., Master of Agriculture; M. Hort., Master of Horticulture; M. For., Master of Forestry; M. H. E., Master of Home Economics; M. V. Sc., Master of Veterinary Science.

WITH THE ALUMNI CLUBS.

ST. JOSEPH COUNTY PICNIC.

Brimming over with old-time M. A. C. enthusiasm and "pep" was the St. Joe County ... A. C. Association picnic held at Klinger Lake, St. Joseph County, on August 14. After a "real" picnic dinner, several former students and friends of M. A. C., were called upon for impromptu talks, William T. Langley, '82, President, presiding. Short remarks were made by J. M. Wendt '15, County Agricultural Agent; Howard C. Bucknell '06, Centreville; Howard Slote, Special, Constantine; G. Lee Barnes '17; Sam Hagenbuch '10, Secretary of the Association; and H. E. Hewitt '13, Teacher of Agriculture at Three Rivers. Robert Zimmermann, much farmer of Centreville, who has been doing some valuable experimental work in co-operation with the college, expressed his interest in M. A. C. and his pleasure at being present; Miss Mary E. Foley, assistant alumni secretary representing the college, spoke briefly on matters of interest at the college. The old officers were unanimously elected for the coming year, as follows: Wm. T. Langley '82, President; Sam Hagenbuch, '10, Secretary. The afternoon was spent in bathing, launch-riding, and renewing old friendships.

ALUMNI BREAKFAST AT GRAND RAPIDS.

A number of club workers and extensionists who were attending the county club leaders round-up and State Club Leaders Meeting at Grand Rapids June 7th got together for a breakfast at the Hotel Browning. It is needless to say that considerable M. A. C. enthusiasm was stirred up and vented itself in rousing yells and songs led by R. A. Turner '09.

MANISTEE PICNIC.

A picnic gathering which developed into the organization of the Northwestern Michigan M. A. C. Association was held at Onekema in Manistee County, Saturday, July 16th.

The Manistee County people have contemplated an organization for some time but have been unable to select a time and place that would permit of everyone's attendance. The members were polled considerably by four machine loads of East Lansing and Detroit faculty people and alumni who were resorting at Crystal Lake near Frankfort.

Following a very bounteous picnic dinner games led by Geo. Gauthier '14 kept the crowd entertained. When the excitement had subsided each one was leaving "the grotto" an organization and the alumni secretary be authorized to make such further increases for special ability and service or other appropriate reasons, as may to them seem just and expedient.

MINUTES OF SUMMER BOARD MEETINGS.

JUNE MEETING.

The June meeting of the State Board of Agriculture was held in East Lansing June 18, with President Kedzie, Messrs. Graham, Doherty, Beaumont, Woodman and Wallace present.

The minutes of the previous meeting were approved.

The following report and recommendation of the Committee on Employment was adopted:

"That in the salaries of all persons below the grade of heads of departments and exclusive of stenographers, a straight advance be made of $200 each, except that the heads of departments now drawing less than $4,000, be increased $450 each and further that the board hereby be authorized to make such further increases for special ability and service or other appropriate reasons, as may to them seem just and expedient."

That it is recommended that in the place of the "incidental" fee of $7.50 per year now paid by students, an annual fee of $45.00 be charged, payable $15.00 per term, that the fee for special courses be $10.00.
N. C. was referred to the president with power.

The expense accounts of the Board members were approved.

ON MOTION, ADJOURNED.

WEDDING.

BOTTOMLEY-PARKER.

Esther Anne Parker, '17, and Myrl E. Bottomley, '16, were married on August 21 at the home of the bride's parents in Coldwater. Bottomley was a lieutenant in the 335th Infantry, and was discharged late last spring. Previous to entering the service, he was with the Independence Nursery Company. Mrs. Bottomley has been teaching domestic science in Detroit since leaving college. The Bottomleys will live at 8041 Connecticut Ave., Cleveland, Ohio.

The marriage of Herbert Cooper, '16, and Sidna Free, '17, occurred on April 12, in Lansing. The Coopers are at home at 200 Moors River Drive. Cooper is managing the South Lansing Real Estate Company.

TRANSMAR-COLLINGWOOD.

Of more than ordinary interest to M. A. C. folks was the marriage on September 2 of Rebecca Collingwood, with '20, and Earl R. Trangmar, '17, at the bride's home in East Lansing. The bride is a daughter of Judge C. E. Collingwood, '85, of East Lansing, and a sister of Harris Collingwood, '11, of Ithaca, New York. "Trang" since graduation and until last spring was supervisor of publications at the college. He is now in the copy department of the Ralph H. Jones Advertising Agency, Cincinnati, Ohio. The Transmars will live at 1906 Mentor Ave., Norwood, Cincinnati, Ohio.

YOKESEDINA.

The wedding of Miss Frances Sedina to Mr. Elmore Yoke, with '13, took place at the bride's home in Lansing. The bride is a graduate of the University of Michigan. The couple recently returned from overseas where he was a lieutenant in the army for nearly two years. The Yokes will live at 485 Oakwood Ave., Toledo, Ohio, where Yoke is in the employ of a development company.

DENDELL-HAYES.

Attractive in its simplicity was the wedding of Miss Lelia Hayes and Lloyd P. Pendell, '14, which took place at the home of the bride's father, L. V. Hayes, West Saginaw St., Lansing, on August 21. For the past three years Pendell has been fire protection engineer with the Millers' Mutual Fire Insurance Company at Lansing. After a prolonged trip through the west, Mr. and Mrs. Pendell will be at home in Lansing.

WYANT-NORTHUP.

The wedding of Miss Zelma Northup, '06, assistant instructor in bacteriology and Royce W. Wyant, '16, instructor in the dairying department, occurred on September 12 at the bride's home in East Lansing. Miss Northup received a Master's degree from M. A. C. in 1913, and an M. A. from the University of Michigan in 1914. Mrs. Wyant recently returned from France where she served in an ammunition train.

WILCOX-BANGS.

Eugene Irving Wilcox, '08, and Miss Fannie Catherine Bangs were married on Thursday, August 28, at Bangor, Michigan. They will live at Bangor, where the groom has a farm.

NELSON-BROWN.

Miss Harty Brown, with '09, daughter of Secretary and Miss A. M. Brown, of the college, was married on August 18 to Dr. Carl F. Nelson. The bride is a graduate of the University of Michigan and for the past five years has taught English at the University of Kansas. She has attained some prominence as a writer of short stories, a number of which have recently appeared in the Atlantic Monthly. Dr. Nelson is head of the department of biological chemistry at the University of Kansas. The Nelsons will be at home at Lawrence, Kansas, at the beginning of the college year.

LEONARD-HYDE.

George Leonard, '14, and Vera Hyde, '12, both of Hart, Michigan, were married at the home of the bride on August 16. The groom recently returned from overseas, and for a time was instructor in ignition and lighting with the Second Training Detachment at the college.
ford, Dean of the College of Agriculture of the University of Missouri, presented to him on the occasion of his leaving upon a special mission to France as the representative of the American Agriculturists' Association. The city of New York gave a dinner in Dean Mumford's honor on the eve of his sailing for France.

T. S. Major is the new secretary of the Michigan Society of New York. John W. F. Freeman is now at 486 East 49th Street, Portland, Oregon. He is organizer of the western work of the Bedford Screw and Machine Co. of Chicago.

C. B. Smith, Chief in the office of Extension Work, at Washington, D. C., was a college visitor during the summer.

J. S. Mitchell is still engaged in farming and livestock business at Holly, Michigan, pasturing his stock near the farm, and making machinery.

C. A. Jewell, who is connected with the agricultural high school at Amboy, Washington, wrote Mrs. Landon recently, expressing confidence that the record for the good old college is of the highest order. Indeed I am so interested in its welfare that I have committed to memory the record of that monster $750,000 appropriation for the use of the institution, the thought of which has lodged in my mind for the past couple of weeks.

Col. Otis R. Waldo (with) is now recruiting officer at Toledo, Ohio.

Arthur E. Kocker is with the Bureau of Soils U. S. Department of Agriculture at Grants Pass, Oregon.

J. M. Churchill is still with the State Highway Department of Idaho, with address at Mackay.

Arthur Adelman with the Ordnance Department at Washington, D. C., is engaged in the development of improved Artillery Ammunition, the requirements for which were brought out by the war, one of the most interesting problems being increased range and accuracy, where rapid progress is being made.

Richard C. Fowler formerly in the Bureau of Aircraft Production is now in charge of sales at the Domest- tic Engineering Co., of Dayton, Ohio. They manufacture the Dolco Electric Locomotives and complete electrical equipment for the farm. He lives at 618 Orlando Terrace, Oakwood, Dayton, Ohio.

C. A. Willson, of Knoxville, Tenn. was made Assistant Dean of Agriculture at the University of Tennessee, in July. He has been associated with the University for some time as Professor of Animal Husbandry and Dairying. Willson, who was with the West Virginia University, (Bertha Willson '06), he was a college visitor this summer.

Scott B. Lilly, formerly in Philadelphia, is now associated with C. A. Kenney, Contracting Engineer, 30 Church St., New York. N. Bowditch, Jr. (with) has been made associate district manager of the Truscon Steel Company of Chicago, with which concern he has been associated for some time. He resides at 749 Grove St., Glencoe, Illinois.

Arthur H. Wilcox asks to have his address changed from Portland, Ore- gon to New York City. He is still with the Forest Service.

Arthur A. Dunham was discharged from the service June 2, 1919 and is again practicing dentistry at Albion, Mich. He was in service two years, one year of which was spent overseas. He had the distinction of being promoted to the rank of Surgeon of the 7th Division in March.

Frank K. Webb, major in the Engineers, has returned to America and is now in New Orleans where his address is 238 So. Pierce St. Webb went over with the 24th Engineers as captain and regimental adjutant. Prior to returning to the U. S. he was promoted to the grade of major. While in France he met Lieutenants "Climt" Chilson, ’12, and "Maggie" Wendel, ’11.

J. H. Nelson, assistant superintendent of the Industrial Works at Bay City, Mich., was in charge of the work of the firm. Besides his regular position "Nelly" is city alderman, 6th ward, county supervisor, deputy sheriff, Master of Portsmouth Lodge, No. 190, P. & A. M., and Monarch of Shoppen-augh Grotto.

Kelly B. Lemmon, Major Coast Artillery Corps, has returned from overseas and is now at Fort Worden, Washington. Major Lemmon sailed from Hoboken September 8th but practically all of the time his outfit was in France it was in an instruction and training center.

Gerald H. Allen has moved from 375 Fisher Ave., Detroit, to R. D. No. 1, Redford, Mich.

Alonzo H. Chase has moved from Rocket River, N. Y., to Messena, N. Y. R. D. No. 3.

Parnell G. McKenna, Captain First Field Artillery and instructor in the school of fire at Fort Sill, has left the army and is now in the oil lease brokerage business with offices at 52 Petroleum Bldg., Fort Worth, Texas.

Harry E. Saier, seedsmen and florist at Lansing, announces the chang- ing of his location to 114-16-18, East Ottawa St., where he has purchased three stores. New machinery will be installed, up-to-date storage bins, etc., that will enable him to handle a large seed business to the best advantage. His floral sales room will be located, beginning August 1st, at 111 West Michigan Ave., which is now oc- cupied by the Paris Cafe.

Frank Dayharsh has land and real estate business in Stephenville, Oregon.

Oliver H. Cleveland, 2d Lieutenant Motor Transport Corps, writes that they are now packing up preparatory to leaving for base-port and he hopes to take a long ocean voyage shortly. "Clevy" landed overseas in July and was sent to a Motor Trans- portal School at Decize, France, where he has been ever since as one of the permanent personnel of the school.

THE M. A. C. RECORD.

HOTEL HEADQUARTERS
HOTEL STATLER
Detroit
1,000 rooms—1,000 baths.
400 rooms (with shower bath) at $1.50 and $2 a day Club breakfasts.
Grand Circus Park, between Washington Boulevard and Bagley Avenue.

NEW BURDICK HOTEL
Kalamazoo, Mich.
Fireproof construction; 260 rooms, 150 rooms with private bath. European plan. $1.00 per day and up.

THE PARK PLACE HOTEL
Traverse City, Mich.
The leading all-the-year-round hotel of the region. All modern con- veniences. All outside rooms. W. O. Holden, Mgr.

WENTWORTH-KERNS HOTEL
New Entrance on Grand Ave., European plan. $1.00 up. Both dining room and cafeteria in connection W. W. KERNS, Proprietor.

IF ITS DRUGS WE HAVE IT

C. J. ROUSER DRUG CO.
123 South Washington Ave.

Society Printing
and Fine Stationery
and Cards

Lawrence & Van Buren
Printing Co.
210-212 North
Grand Avenue
Lansing

METAL DOOR MATS
Conform to the floor, are easy to clean. We have them in three sizes.
They sell for $1.25, $1.50, $2.25
Frank F. Hebard, Gunners' Mate, 1st Class, was released from active duty in the Naval Reserve Corps and is now at 1107 R. 12, Grand Rapids. While he was in the navy he served as a small arms instructor and an instructor in machine gun firing.

D. F. Fisher is joint author of an article on Apple Scald recently published in the Journal of Agricultural Research. It is characteristic of Fisher and his work and is done in the most thorough manner.

This from a Lansing paper: "Who stole the coon and woodchuck from the Potter park zoo?" The cock sparrow is unable to say and the sh bear stands mute. The elk grins sarcastically and the craw fish backs away from the question. City Forester Lee Bancroft, "Pete" wears crepe on his arm. Some one deliberately went to the zoo and carried the animals away. Whether the act was committed as a practical joke does not appease the wrath of the park authorities and Mr. Bancroft says: "It's a darn mean trick anyway."

Lieut. Harold Hawkins writes that he flew 7,004 miles during February and March visiting Cuba, Haiti and Jamaica. His air detachment is scheduled to be at Newport during July and August. "Hallie" is Squadron Commander in the Seaplane Division and is now at the Naval Air Station, Norfolk, Virginia.

Gale W. Gilbert of Owosso in attending graduation exercises at Mt. Holyoke College, visited Dr. Beal at Amherst on June 7th.

V. G. Anderson in sending in $2.00 remarks: "That makes a dollar per child. Yes, we have a month-old girl with us now, born May 6th, and the second one is due on June 7th. Andy's address is 149 Bartley Ave., Mansfield, Ohio.

Stanley Martin was around the campus just previous to commencement en route to a visit with Michigan folks near Owosso. Martin is in the real estate business in Cleveland and is living at 7513 Lexington Ave.

Lieut. Elmer W. Brandes, of the Sanitary Corps, Central Medical Dept. Laboratory, was discharged from service and is now in Washington, D. C., where his address is 3637 Legion Ave. Brandes attended the commencement reunions.

Phillip Baden is on a fruit ranch near Corvallis, Oregon.

Russel A. Warner was discharged from military service on the 31st day of March and on the next day went to work for the General Electric Co. in their Washington office in the patent department where he was employed before going into service. He still goes to Walter Reed Hospital twice a week to get electrical treatment for wounds received at Baleau Woods.

THE M. A. C. RECORD.

The Warners are living at 541 21st St. N. W.

W. A. McDonald, formerly captain in the Infantry of the 85th Division, has been released from service and has returned to Lansing to become secretary of the Connor Ice Cream Co. The McDonalds are living in the Porter Apartments.

Randolph Hill, with, who has been in the First Regiment of Motor Mechanics stationed at Epinal, France, writes that he is now on the move towards an embarkation port en route for home. His sister, Carmelita A. Hill, is second assistant at the Dunn County Training School for Teachers at Menominee, Wisc.

Lt. L. C. Hulse, now with the Army of Occupation, has recently been assigned to Battery C of the 5th Field Artillery which is located in the town of Eltlesborn, Germany.

Robt. J. McCarthy, who was with Co. D of the 102d Machine Gun Bn., during the early phases of the advance north of Chateau Thierry and who was sent to America in the early fall as an instructor, has been released from service and is now employed by the Elm City Nursery Co. for which he worked just previous to leaving for France. He is living at 23 Pardee Place, Westville, Conn.

Paul K. Fu, is in Canton, China, having gone there from Hong Kong. His address is Canton, Y. M. C. A. Fu writes that he is very glad that the war is over as it affects the condition of affairs in China greatly and things there are continually improving.

R. E. Matteson, Co. D of the 106th Engineers, in a recent letter tells of the wonderful changes that have been made in the debarkation camp at Brest, France, within the past several months. He says that while there might have been cause for criticism of the camp in the winter, certainly there can be no criticism now and that everything is in excellent order there this spring. It is now one of the best of foreign camps. He has seen Herb Straight, '17, Lieut.

What's going on at M. A. C.?

What are your old college friends doing?

Don't tell me you don't want to know.

"Join Up" with the M. A. C. Association.

A membership will bring you the M. A. C. Record.

It will keep you posted on the "goings on" of M. A. C. and your old college friends.

Membership Dues $2.00 the year which include the Record.

BARKER-FOOLER ELECTRIC CO.

"THE MOTOR PEOPLE" 

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT CO.

"THINGS ELECTRICAL"

116 East Michigan Avenue

BELL 586 - CITIZENS 3303

THE CAMPUS PRESS

EAST LANSING'S MODERN PRINTING PRESS

Now Located in the New Bank Building

PRINTING EMBOS SING ENGRAVING

Announcing to Alumni

That we have moved from the car station building on the Campus, to the Bank Block in East Lansing. We shall continue to handle Books, College Supplies, Pennants and Souvenirs, on the same co-operative basis as formerly.

You will find it worth while to order Technical Books and Texts from us.

The M. A. C. Book Buying Ass'n

NORMA L. ENSIGN, Manager
the Field Artillery, is now at 125 Green Ave., Detroit. McFarlane was commissioned at Camp Zachary Taylor, Ky., and was a graduate of the 41st class of the Fort Sill School of Fire.

Lyman T. Greve, 1st Lieutenant of the Aviation Section, is now at Brilly, France, A. P. O. 936, with the 281st Aero Squadron. He writes that he expects to get back by August.

Arthur Finch who was discharged from the Field Artillery during the winter is on the home farm near Arcadia, Mich.

Wm. Murphy is enjoying a number of side trips from his headquarters camp in France. He is with Co. H of the 11th Regiment Marine Corps, now stationed at A. P. O. 712. Judging from a recent letter to Mr. Faunce there are few worth while places in France that he hasn’t visited.

Mrs. R. J. McNair (Bertha Puhle) writes that they are moving from Union, N. Y., to South Boardman, Mich.

Earle M. Hough, 1st Lieutenant in the Veterinary Corps, was discharged on April 12th and is in business in Lansing with P. E. Church at 251 Capital National Bank Building.

Gordon C. Edmonds is in charge of the repair work in the garage at Hastings, Mich. He is the proud father of Stuart Lawrence Edmonds who was born December 26th very shortly after his father’s discharge from the army.

Donald Emerson, with, returned from overseas May 20th and visited East Lansing following his discharge. He was overseas sixteen months with the 50th Aero Squadron.

Lt. Glynn L. Clarow, formerly in the State Legislature in Lansing as bill clerk, has accepted a position, with the California Fruit Growers Exchange at Dea Moines, Iowa. Calrow inspected $27,000 worth of lemons and oranges during one of his early days on the job.

Howard W. Jolliffe has returned from overseas and is now at Plymouth, Mich.

A. H. Bayer who in February was working on typhoid and meningitis work in the Pathological Laboratory of Base Hospital No. 91 was called to the University at Beuna in April as an instructor in microscopical technique. He has recently been recalled to this country and will be attached to the Pathological Laboratory at Camp Devens, Mass.

Ray Pennington has returned from overseas and has accepted a position with the State Highway Department as engineer at Lansing. Mr. and Mrs. Pennington (Louise Smith, ’17) are living in E. Lansing.

Edward T. Benson has been transferred from the Bureau of Markets to the Bureau of Chemistry and at present is making test trips with “chickens” or more properly speaking “Poultry and Eggs.” His address is 22 Jackson Place, Indianapolis, Ind.

Bernice E. Hales has returned from Los Angeles, California, to Redlands, Calif., where her address is 256 Beuna Vista St.

H. V. Abel is now with the General Sales Agency in the capacity of assistant district manager at Buffalo, N. Y. His address there is 48 Northampton St.

Lieutenant L. R. Leavitt was discharged from the army May 24th and has returned to his home at Alpena.

Roy M. Maitland has returned from service and is working for the Barker, Fowler Electrical Co. in Lansing. He is rooming with Stanley M. Sargent who is employed in the office of the Reo Motor Car Co.

An announcement has been made of the engagement of Richard Doyle and Miss Dorothy Curtiss, ’21, of South Haven.

19.

John Kudder has accepted a position as sales agent with the Conneaut Shovel Co. of Conneaut, Ohio. His address after leaving East Lansing will be 451 Main St., Conneaut.

Lieu. Isaac G. Gardner, with, has visited his parents in Lansing recently. He is now stationed at Camp Eustace, Va.